FILE COPY



OF A PRIVATE LIMITED COMPANY

Company Number 11090461

The Registrar of Companies for England and Wales, hereby certifies that

MAVERICK HOLDCO LIMITED

is this day incorporated under the Companies Act 2006 as a private company, that the company is limited by shares, and the situation of its registered office is in England and Wales

Given at Companies House, Cardiff, on 30th November 2017



* N110904619 *







Application to register a company



Received for filing in Electronic Format on the: 30/11/2017

Company Name in

full:

MAVERICK HOLDCO LIMITED

Private company limited by shares Company Type:

Situation of

Registered Office:

England and Wales

Proposed Registered

Office Address:

C/O SILVERFLEET CAPITAL PARTNERS LLP ONE CARTER LANE

LONDON

UNITED KINGDOM EC4V 5ER

Sic Codes: 64209

Proposed Officers

Company Director 1

Type: Person

Full Forename(s): MR GARETH

Surname: WHILEY

Service Address: recorded as Company's registered office

Country/State Usually UNITED KINGDOM

Resident:

Date of Birth: **/11/1967 Nationality: BRITISH

Occupation: PRIVATE

EQUITY

The subscribers confirm that the person named has consented to act as a director.

Company Director 2

Type: Person

Full Forename(s): MR MARK

Surname: PIASECKI

Service Address: recorded as Company's registered office

Country/State Usually UNITED KINGDOM

Resident:

Date of Birth: **/01/1980 Nationality: BRITISH

Occupation: PRIVATE

EQUITY

The subscribers confirm that the person named has consented to act as a director.

Statement of Capital (Share Capital)

Class of Shares: ORDINARY Number allotted 1
Currency: GBP Aggregate nominal value: 1

Prescribed particulars

VOTING RIGHTS ALL SHARES RANK EQUALLY FOR VOTING PURPOSES. ON A SHOW OF HANDS EACH MEMBER HAS ONE VOTE AND ON A POLL EACH MEMBER HAS ONE VOTE PER SHARE HELD. DIVIDEND RIGHTS EACH SHARE RANKS EQUALLY FOR ANY DIVIDEND DECLARED. RIGHTS TO CAPITAL EACH SHARE RANKS EQUALLY FOR ANY DISTRIBUTION MADE ON A WINDING UP. RIGHTS OF REDEMPTION NO SHARES ARE REDEEMABLE.

Statement of C	apital (Totals)			
Currency:	GBP	Total number of shares:	1	
·		Total aggregate nominal value:	1	
		Total aggregate unpaid:	0	

Electronically filed document for Company Number:

11090461

Initial Shareholdings

MAVERICK TOPCO Name:

LIMITED

ONE CARTER LANE Address

> Number of shares: **LONDON** 1

UNITED KINGDOM GBP Currency: 1

Nominal value of each EC4V 5ER

share:

Class of Shares:

Amount unpaid: $\mathbf{0}$ 1 Amount paid:

ORDINARY

Persons with Significant Control (PSC)					
Statement of initial significant control					
On incorporation, there will be someone who will count as a Person with Significant Control (either a registerable person or relevant legal entity (RLE)) in relation to the company					
Electronically filed document for Company Number:	11090461				

Relevant Legal Entity (RLE) details

Company Name: MAVERICK TOPCO LIMITED

Service Address: ONE CARTER LANE

LONDON

UNITED KINGDOM

EC4V 5ER

Legal Form: PRIVATE LIMITED

Governing Law: ENGLISH LAW

Register Location: UNITED KINGDOM

Country/State: UNITED KINGDOM

Registration Number: 11090416

The relevant legal entity holds, directly or indirectly, 75% or Nature of control more of the shares in the company. The relevant legal entity holds, directly or indirectly, 75% or Nature of control more of the voting rights in the company.

Statement of Compliance

I confirm the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 as to registration have been complied with.

Name: MAVERICK TOPCO LIMITED

Authenticated YES

Authorisation

Authoriser Designation: subscriber Authenticated YES

Electronically filed document for Company Number:

11090461

COMPANY HAVING A SHARE CAPITAL

Memorandum of Association of

MAVERICK HOLDCO LIMITED

Each subscriber to this Memorandum of Association wishes to form a company under the Companies Act 2006 and agrees to become a member of the company and to take at least one share.

Name of each subscriber	Authentication by each subscriber
MAVERICK TOPCO LIMITED	MAVERICK TOPCO LIMITED
MATVERGER FOI CO EMMILED	MATURITURE TO TOO EMMITED

Dated 30/11/2017

THE COMPANIES ACT 2006

PRIVATE COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

- of -

MAVERICK HOLDCO LIMITED

(Company No.)

Incorporated on

Table of Contents

		Page
PART	1 PRELIMINARY	1
1.	Introduction and Definitions	1
2.	Allotment and Transfer of Shares	2
3.	Notice of General Meetings	3
4.	Proceedings at general meetings	3
PART	2 DIRECTORS	4
5.	Number of Directors	4
6.	Alternate Directors	4
7.	Delegation of Directors powers	4
8.	Appointment and Removal of Directors	5
9.	Disqualification of Directors	5
10.	Proceeding of Directors	5
11.	Directors interests	6
12.	Directors' conflicts of interest- Transactional Conflicts	7
13.	Change of name	8
14.	Secretary	8
15.	The Seal	9
16.	Indemnity and Insurance	9
17.	Notices	9
18.	Registered office	10

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

- of -

MAVERICK HOLDCO LIMITED

(Company No.)

(the "Company")

PART 1 PRELIMINARY

The articles contained in the model articles for public companies, as set out in schedule 3 to the Companies (Model Articles) Regulations (SI 2008/3229) (the "Model Articles") shall apply to the Company, save insofar as they are excluded or modified by or inconsistent with the articles hereinafter contained and together such articles shall comprise the articles of association. Save as expressly set out in this article 1, no regulation s set out in any statute or statutory instrument concerning companies shall apply as articles of the Company.

A reference herein to "MA Article I" shall be to Article 1 of the Model Articles. References to other articles of the Model Articles shall be made accordingly, save that the numbering of such references shall correspond to the numbering of the relevant provision of the Model Articles. The following Model Articles shall not apply to the Company: MA Articles 9 to 11 inclusive; MA Article 16; MA Articles 20 to 22 inclusive; MA Articles 25 to 27 inclusive; MA Article 28; MA Article 36(1)(a); MA Article 39; MA Article 40; MA Article 43(2); MA Article 46(2)(a); MA Article 50; MA Article 52(2)(b); MA Article 63(5); MA Article 64; MA Article 79; MA Article 80; MA Article 81; MA Article 85 and MA Article 86. MA Article 8(2) shall be modified by the inclusion of the words "company secretary". MA Article 17(2) shall be modified by the inclusion of the words", if any," after the words "company secretary". MA Article 19 shall be modified by the inclusion of the words "and with the consent of the Parent" after the words "Subject to the articles". MA Article 32(2) shall be modified by the inclusion of the words "If the Parent consents," prior to the words "The Chairman of the meeting may permit".

1. **Introduction and Definitions**

- 1.1 In these articles, the following expressions shall have the following meanings:
 - (a) "Act" means the Companies Act 2006, including any statutory modification, replacement or re-enactment thereof from time to time in force;
 - (b) "Board" means the board of directors of the Company (or a duly authorised committee thereof) from time to time;
 - (c) "Director Interest" shall be as defined in Article 11.3(b);

- (d) "Group" means Maverick Topco Limited and any undertaking which is a subsidiary undertaking of Maverick Topco Limited from time to time and references to "Group Company" and "members of the Group" shall be construed accordingly;
- (e) "Parent" means the undertaking (if any) which is the holder of the entire issued share capital for the time being of the Company, as carries the right to vote at general meetings of the Company;
- (f) "Situational Conflict" shall mean a direct or indirect interest of a director which conflicts or may potentially conflict with the interests of the Company (other than a Transactional Conflict or in circumstances which cannot reasonably be regarded as likely to give rise to a conflict of interest). For these purposes a conflict of interest shall include a conflict of interest and duty and a conflict of duties; and
- (g) "Transactional Conflict" shall mean a direct or indirect conflict of interest of a director which arises in relation to an existing or proposed transaction or arrangement with the Company.

2. Allotment and Transfer of Shares

- 2.1 The directors shall not be entitled to exercise any right to issue shares in the Company or to grant rights to subscribe for, or to convert any security into, shares in the Company in accordance with the provisions of section 550 of the Act.
- 2.2 Subject to Article 2.3, the directors shall register the transfer by the Parent of any share in the Company, but the directors shall not register a transfer in any other circumstances.
- 2.3 Notwithstanding anything contained in these Articles, (i) any pre-emption rights on a transfer of shares conferred on existing members by these Articles or otherwise shall not apply to; and (ii) the directors shall not decline to register nor suspend registration of; any transfer of shares where such transfer is:
 - (a) in favour of any bank or institution (or any nominee or nominees of such bank or institution) to whom such shares are being transferred by way of security;
 - (b) duly executed by any such bank or institution (or any such nominee or nominees) to whom such shares shall (including any further shares in the Company acquired by reason of its holding of such shares) have been transferred as aforesaid, pursuant to the power of sale under such security; or
 - duly executed by a receiver appointed by a bank or institution pursuant to any security document which creates any security interest over such shares,

and a certificate by any official of such bank or institution or any such receiver that the shares are or are to be subject to such a security and that the transfer is executed in accordance with the provisions of this Article 2.3 shall be conclusive evidence of such facts.

2.4 Notwithstanding anything contained in these Articles, any lien on shares which the Company has shall not apply in respect of any shares which have been charged by way of security to a bank or financial institution or a subsidiary of a bank or financial institution or which are transferred in accordance with the provisions of Article 2.

3. Notice of General Meetings

In every notice calling a general meeting of the Company there shall appear with reasonable prominence a statement that a member entitled to attend and vote is entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend and speak and vote instead of him and that a proxy need not also be a member. Notices and other communications relating to a general meeting which any member is entitled to receive shall not be sent to the directors of the Company in their capacity as such.

4. **Proceedings at General Meetings**

- 4.1 No business shall be transacted at any meeting unless a quorum is present. Two persons present entitled to vote upon the business to be transacted, each being a member or a proxy for a member or a duly authorised representative of a corporation, shall be a quorum, except at such times as the Company has only one member in which case one person entitled to vote upon the business to be transacted, being the sole member or a proxy for the sole member or a duly authorised representative of a corporation which is the sole member, shall be a quorum.
- 4.2 At such times as the Company has only one member and he takes a decision which may be taken by the Company in general meeting and which has effect as if agreed by the Company in general meeting, such member shall (unless his decision is taken by way of written resolution) provide the Company with a written record of that decision.
- 4.3 An instrument appointing a proxy and any authority under which it is executed or a copy of such authority certified notarially or in some other way approved by the directors must be delivered to the registered office of the Company (or, to the extent permitted by the Act, sent using electronic communications to the Company at the address specified (or deemed to have been specified) by the Company for that purpose so as to be received by the Company):
 - (a) in the case or a general meeting or an adjourned meeting, not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for the holding of the meeting or to the place of the meeting at any time before the time appointed for the holding of the meeting;
 - (b) in the case of a proxy notice given in relation to a poll taken more than 48 hours after it was demanded, not less than 24 hours before the time appointed for the taking of the poll; and
 - (c) in the case of a proxy notice given in relation to a poll taken not more than 48 hours after it was demanded, before the end of the meeting at which the poll was demanded.

In calculating when a proxy notice is to be delivered, no account is to be taken of any part of a day that is not a working day. A notice revoking the appointment of in proxy must be given in accordance with the Act.

PART 2 DIRECTORS

5. Number of Directors

Unless otherwise determined by ordinary resolution of the Company, the number of directors (other than alternate directors) shall not be subject to any maximum but shall not be less than one.

6. **Alternate Directors**

6.1 Any director (other than an alternate director) may appoint any other director or any other person approved by the Parent and willing to act to be an alternate director and may remove from office an alternate director so appointed by him. An alternate director may represent one or more directors. An alternate director shall forthwith cease to be an alternate director if his appointer ceases for any reason to be a director.

6.2 An alternate director shall be entitled:

- (a) to receive notice of all meetings of directors and of all committees of directors of which his appointer is a member and to attend any such meeting;
- (b) to one vote for every director whom he represents who is not personally present in addition to his own vote (if any) as a director at any meeting of the directors or of any committee of directors; and
- (c) to sign a resolution in writing of the directors on behalf of every director whom he represents as well as on his own account if he himself is a director.
- An alternate director shall be entitled generally to perform all the functions of his appointer as a director in his absence but shall not as an alternate director be entitled to receive any remuneration from the Company, save that he may be paid by the Company that part (if any) of the remuneration otherwise payable to his appointer as his appointer may by notice in writing to the Company from time to time direct.
- Any appointment or removal of an alternate director shall be by notice in writing to the Company signed by the director making or revoking the appointment or in any other manner approved by the directors. In the case of a notice of appointment, the notice must contain a statement signed by the proposed alternate that the proposed alternate is willing to act as the alternate of the director giving the notice.

7. **Delegation of Directors powers**

The directors may delegate any of their powers to committees consisting of one or more directors or other persons approved by the Parent. References in these articles to a committee of directors or to a director as a member of such a committee shall include a committee or person referred to in this article. MA Article 5(1) shall be modified accordingly.

8. Appointment and Removal of Directors

- 8.1 The Parent may by notice in writing at any time and from time to time appoint any person who is willing to act as a director of the Company and is permitted by law to do so either to fill a casual vacancy or as an additional director, and/or remove any director from office. Such notice must be signed by or on behalf of the Parent and delivered to the registered office or produced to a meeting of the directors. Such appointment or removal shall take effect forthwith upon delivery or production of the notice or no such later time (if any) specified in such notice.
- 8.2 Without prejudice to the provisions of Article 8.1, any person who is willing to act as a director and is permitted by law to do so may be appointed as a director of the Company either:
 - (a) by ordinary resolution of the members; or
 - (b) with the consent of the Parent by a resolution of the directors.

9. **Disqualification of Directors**

The office of a director shall be vacated if:

- 9.1 he ceases to be a director by virtue of any provision of the Act or becomes prohibited by law from being a director;
- 9.2 he becomes bankrupt or makes any arrangement or composition with his creditors generally in satisfaction of that person's debts;
- 9.3 a registered medical practitioner who is treating that person gives a written opinion to the company stating that that person has become physically or mentally incapable of acting as a director and may remain so for more than three months;
- 9.4 he resigns his office by notice to the Company; or
- 9.5 he shall for more than six consecutive months have been absent without permission of the directors from meetings of the directors held during that period and the directors resolve that his office be vacated.

10. **Proceeding of Directors**

- 10.1 At the directors' meeting, unless a quorum is participating, no proposal is to be voted on. The quorum for the transaction of the business of the directors may be fixed by the directors and unless so fixed at any higher number shall be two, except at such times as the Company has only one director in which case the quorum shall be one director. A person who holds office only as an alternate director shall, if his appointer is not present, be counted in the quorum.
- 10.2 Any director (including an alternate director) may participate in a meeting of the directors or a committee of the directors of which he is a member by means of a conference telephone or similar communicating equipment whereby all persons participating in the meeting can hear each other. A person so participating shall be

deemed to be present in person at such meeting and shall be entitled to vote or be counted in a quorum accordingly. Subject to the Act, all business transacted in such manner by the Board or a committee of the Board shall for the purpose of these Articles be deemed to be validly and effectively transacted at a meeting of the Board or a committee of the Board notwithstanding that a quorum of Directors is not physically present in the same place. Such a meeting shall be deemed to take place where the largest group of those participating is assembled or, if there is no such group, where the chairman of the meeting then is.

10.3 The continuing directors or a sole continuing director may act notwithstanding any vacancies in their number but, if the number of directors is less than the number fixed as the quorum, the continuing directors or director may act only for the purpose of calling a general meeting and if there are no such directors remaining then the member(s) may call a general meeting.

11. **Directors' interests**

Directors' conflicts of interest - Situational Conflicts

- 11.1 If a situation arises or exists in which a director has or could have a Situational Conflict, without prejudice to the provisions of Articles 11.2 to 11.4, the director concerned, or any other director, may propose to the board that such Situational Conflict be authorised, such proposal to be made in writing and delivered to the other directors or made orally at a meeting of the board, in each case setting out particulars of the Situational Conflict in question. Subject to the Act, the directors may, with the consent of the Parent, authorise such Situational Conflict and the continuing performance by the relevant director of his duties as a director of the Company on such terms as they may think fit.
- 11.2 The relevant director shall not be counted in the quorum at the relevant meeting of the directors to authorise such Situational Conflict nor be entitled to vote on the resolution authorising it.
- Subject to compliance by him with his duties as a director under Part X of the Act (other than the duty in section 175(1) of the Act which is the subject of this Article 11.3), a director (including the chairman of the Company (if any) and any other non-executive director) may, at any time:
 - (a) be an officer of, employed by, or hold shares or other securities (whether directly or indirectly) in the Company;
 - (b) be a director or other officer of, employed by or hold shares or other securities (whether directly or indirectly) in, or otherwise be interested, whether directly or indirectly, in any other Group Company (in each case a "**Director Interest**") and notwithstanding his office or the existence of an actual or potential conflict between any Director Interest and the interests of the Company, which would fall within the ambit of that section 175(1), the relevant director:
 - (c) shall be entitled to attend any meeting or part of a meeting of the directors or a committee of the directors at which any matter which may be relevant to the

Director Interest may be discussed, and to vote on any resolution of the directors or a committee thereof relating to such matter, and any board papers relating to such matter shall be provided to the relevant director at the same time as the other directors (save that a director may not vote on any resolution in respect of matters relating to his employment with the Company or other Group Company);

- (d) shall not be obliged to account to the Company for any remuneration or other benefits received by him in consequence of any Director Interest;
- (e) will not be obliged to disclose to the Company or use for the benefit of the Company any confidential information received by him by virtue of his Director Interest and otherwise than by virtue of his position as a director, if to do so would breach any duty of confidentiality to any other Group Company or third party; and
- 11.4 Notwithstanding the provisions of Articles 11.1 and 11.3, the Parent may from time to time, at any time, by notice in writing to the Company, authorise, on such terms as they shall think fit and shall specify in the notice any Situational Conflict which has been notified to the board by any director under Article 11.1 (whether or not the matter has already been considered under, or deemed to fall within, Article 11.1 or 11.3, as the case may be).
- 11.5 No contract entered into shall be liable to be avoided by virtue of:
 - (a) any director having an interest of the type referred to in Article 11.1 where the relevant Situational Conflict has been approved as provided by that Article or which is authorised pursuant to Article 11.4; or
 - (b) any director having a Director Interest which falls within Article 11.1 or which is authorised pursuant to Article 11.4.

12. Directors' conflicts of interest - Transactional Conflicts

- The provisions of Articles 11.1 to 11.5 shall not apply to Transactional Conflicts but the following provisions of this Article 12.1 and Articles 12.2 to 12.4 shall so apply. Any director may be interested in an existing or proposed transaction or arrangement with the Company provided that he complies with the Act and (if applicable) Articles 12.2 and 12.3.
- 12.2 Subject to the provisions of the Act, and provided that he has disclosed to the other directors the nature and extent of any material interest of his, a director, notwithstanding his office:
 - (a) may be a party to, or otherwise interested in, any existing or proposed transaction or arrangement with the Company or in which the Company is otherwise interested:
 - (b) may be a director or other officer of, or employed by, or a party to any existing or proposed transaction or arrangement with or otherwise interested in, any

body corporate promoted by the Company or in which the Company is otherwise interested; and

(c) shall not, by reason of his office, be accountable to the Company for any benefit which he derives from any such office or employment or from any such transaction or arrangement or from any interest in any such body corporate and no such transaction or arrangement shall be liable to be avoided on the ground of any such interest or benefit.

12.3 For the purposes of Article 12.2:

- (a) a general notice to the directors that a director is to be regarded as having an interest of the nature and extent specified in the notice in any existing or proposed transaction or arrangement in which a specified person or class of persons is interested shall be deemed to be a disclosure that the director has an interest in any such transaction of the nature and extent so specified; and
- (b) an interest of which a director has no knowledge and of which it is unreasonable to expect him to have knowledge shall not be treated as an interest of his.
- 12.4 Without prejudice to the obligation of each director to declare an interest in accordance with the Act, a director may vote at a meeting of the board or of a committee of the board on any resolution concerning a matter in which he has an interest, whether direct or indirect, which relates to a transaction or arrangement with the Company, or in relation to which he has a duty. Having so declared any such interest or duty he may have, the director shall he counted in the quorum present when any such resolution is under consideration and if he votes on such resolution his vote shall be counted.

13. Change of name

The Parent may by memorandum in writing at any time and from time to time direct that the name of the Company be changed. Such a memorandum must be signed by or on behalf of the Parent and must be delivered to the registered office or produced to a meeting of the directors. Forthwith upon receipt of such notice (or otherwise as directed by the Parent), the directors shall, or shall procure, that notice of such proposed change of name shall be given to the Registrar of Companies in accordance with the provisions of section 79 of the Act together with the appropriate fee.

14. **Secretary**

If the Company is required by the Act to have a secretary, or if the Company is not so required but the directors decide that the Company should have a secretary, the secretary shall be appointed by the directors for such term, at such remuneration and upon such other conditions as they may think fit; and any secretary so appointed may be removed by them.

15. The Seal

In addition to its powers under section 44 of the Act, the Company may have a seal and the directors shall provide for the safe custody of such seal. The directors shall determine who may sign any instrument to which the seal is affixed and unless otherwise so determined it shall be signed by at least one authorised person in the presence of a witness who attests this signature. For the purposes of this article, an authorised person is any director of the company, the company secretary (if there is one) or any person authorised by the directors for the purpose of signing documents to which the common seal is applied.

16. **Indemnity and Insurance**

- 16.1 With the written consent of the Parent, the Company may indemnify, out of the assets of the Company, any director of the Company or of any associated company against all losses and liabilities which he may sustain or incur in the execution of the duties of his office or otherwise in relation thereto, including, in respect of any director of either the Company or any associated company, where the Company or such associated company acts as trustee of an occupational pension scheme (as defined in the Act), against liability incurred in connection with the relevant company's activities as trustee of such scheme, provided that this Article 16.1 shall only have effect insofar as its provisions are not void under the Act.
- 16.2 Subject to the Act, with the written consent of the Parent, the Company may provide a director of the Company or of the Parent or of any other holding company of the Company with funds to meet expenditure incurred or to be incurred by him in defending any civil or criminal proceedings brought or threatened against him, or any investigation carried out or proceedings brought or threatened against him by any regulatory authority, in any case in connection with any alleged negligence, default, breach of duty or breach of trust by him in relation to the Company or in connection with any application under sections 661(3) or (4) or section 1157 of the Act, and the Company shall be permitted to take or omit to take any action or enter into any arrangement which would otherwise be prohibited under the Act to enable a director to avoid incurring such expenditure.
- 16.3 With the written consent of the Parent, the Company shall be entitled to purchase and maintain insurance for any director of the Company or of any associated company against any liability attaching to any such person in connection with any negligence, default, breach of duty or breach of trust by him in relation to the Company or any such associated company.
- 16.4 For the purpose of Articles 16.1 and 63.3 above, a company will be "associated" with another if one is a subsidiary of the other or both are subsidiaries of the same body corporate as such terms are defined in the Act.

17. **Notices**

Any notice, document or information to be given to or by any person pursuant to these Articles or otherwise by the Company to a member (other than a notice calling a meeting of the directors or a committee thereof) shall be in writing or shall be given in electronic form or, in the case of a notice, document or information sent by the

Company to a member, by publication on a website subject to and in accordance with the Act. A notice, document or information given by electronic means to an address specified for the purpose is deemed to have been given 24 hours after it was sent. A notice, document or information given by means of publication on a website is deemed to have been given when: (i) the notice, document or information was first made available on the website; or (ii) if later, when notification that the notice, document or information was available on the website was received or deemed received.

18. **Registered office**

The Company's registered office is to be situated in England and Wales.